INTERNATIONAL TRAINING CENTRE OF THE ILO

# **Board of the Centre**

78th Session, Turin, 29-30 October 2015

International Training Centre

CC 78/4/3

FOR INFORMATION

FORTH ITEM ON THE AGENDA

# Plan for the audit of the 2015 Financial Statements

# International Training Centre of the ILO

REPORT TO THE BOARD OF THE CENTRE 29-30 October 2015 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2015



To the members of the Board of the International Training Centre of the ILO:

We are pleased to present a summary description of our plan of the International Training Centre of the ILO's (the Centre) annual audit of the transactions and financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2015.

This report is intended for the use of the Board of the Centre and provides information on our audit mandate and objectives, our responsibilities as auditor in relation to the responsibilities of the Board and management, the significant audit areas identified and our plans to address them, a description of information we intend to report to you at the conclusion of the audit, and other relevant matters.

We look forward to working with the members of the Board and are available for consultation at any time. During your upcoming meeting, we will be pleased to discuss any matters of interest and provide any additional information relating to the audit that you may require.

Yours sincerely,

mmcMe

Marian McMahon, CPA, CA, CFA Assistant Auditor General

Ottawa, 31 July 2015

# **Table of Contents**

## Page

What's changed from the previous year	1
Audit mandate	1
Audit scope	1
Objectives Terms of the engagement Audit deliverables	2
Our audit approach	3
Overview Risk analysis Materiality Fraud and error Reliance on internal control Reliance on internal audit	4 6 6 7
Other services provided	8
Expense verification Other areas under audit Audit management Audit team Audit timetable Audit hours and costs	8 8 9 9
Appendix A—Understanding our audit	.10
Appendix B—Responsibilities for financial reporting	.12
Appendix C—Engagement letter	.13
Appendix D—Standard Auditor's Report	.18
Appendix E—Independence	. 20
Appendix F—Developments in accounting and auditing standards	.21

# What's changed from the previous year

## Significant organization-specific changes

In the course of our planning, we have considered that 2015 has seen some turnover in senior management of the Centre for example, this will be the first full year with a new Treasurer, Chief Operations Officer, and new Deputy Director and by the end of the year the Director of the Centre will have retired. We have considered that with this turnover in management, the Financial Services group has changed some of its procedures in an effort to streamline some of its processes. As part of our work, we will gain a better understanding of these revised procedures; however, we do not expect an impact on our planned audit work.

## Accounting and auditing standards

For 2015, we have not identified any new International Public Sector Accounting Standards that apply to the Centre; however, we have noted some developments in accounting and auditing standards that could potentially have a significant impact on the Centre in the future. These items are summarized in Appendix F.

# Audit mandate

The Auditor General of Canada is the external auditor of the International Training Centre of the ILO (the Centre) in accordance with the Financial Regulations of the Centre whereby the external auditor of the International Labour Organization is the external auditor of the Centre.

The Auditor General of Canada is the external auditor of the ILO following appointment by the Governing Body for a period of four years commencing on 1 April 2008. This period was extended for an additional four years until the completion of the 31 December 2015 financial statement audit. The Centre's *Financial Regulations*, chapter IX, elaborate on the terms of reference governing the external audit. The regulations require that the external auditor report to the Board on the audit of the financial statements of the Centre and on other such matters that should be brought to its attention.

# Audit scope

## **Objectives**

Our primary responsibility is to form and express an opinion on the financial statements based on an audit. The financial statements are prepared by management with the oversight

of the Board of the Centre. An audit of the financial statements does not relieve management of their responsibilities.

We will conduct our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute assurance, on whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, including those misstatements caused by fraud or error.

The objectives of the annual audit are to provide an independent opinion on whether

- the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Centre as at 31 December 2015, and its financial performance, its cash flows and the comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS);
- the accounting standards have been applied on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year; and
- the transactions that have come to our notice during the audit of the financial statements have, in all significant respects, been in accordance with the *Financial Regulations* and legislative authority of the Centre (the Statute of the Centre).

As part of our annual audit work, we also carry out specific audit procedures on certain topics selected through discussion with management and the review of various reports. This year's selected topic and objectives are described in the "Other services" section of this report.

## Terms of the engagement

As required by our professional standards, we periodically obtain a written confirmation from management outlining our common understanding of, and our agreement on, the terms of the engagement for this audit. Our most recent engagement letter is included in Appendix C. We will be pleased to discuss matters of interest relating to the terms of the engagement that you may require.

## Audit deliverables

At the conclusion of the audit, we will provide the following reports to the Board of the ITC of ILO:

- Independent Auditor's Report. A standard auditor's report is included in Appendix B for your reference.
- **Report to the Board—Audit Results.** This will contain our findings with respect to the efficiency of the financial procedures, the accounting system, financial controls and, in general, the administration and management of the ITC of the ILO, and all

matters referred to in Article 6 of the Appendix to the Financial Regulations. We will provide an update on prior years' observations and the implementation of recommendations. It will also contain the the current year's observations and recommendations. In addition, our report to the Board will contain a reflection on our tenure as external auditors for the Centre where we will evaluate the progress made by Centre over our 8 years as external auditors. Our reflection will discuss achievements, actions taken toward improvements and areas that remain a challenge.

In addition to our reports, we expect to provide the following additional information:

- **Report to the Director—Audit Results.** This report is prepared to assist the Director in his/her review of the financial statements.
- **Management letter.** A derivative communication that identifies opportunities for changes in procedures that would improve systems of internal control, streamline operations, and/or enhance financial reporting practices.

## Our audit approach

## Overview

Our audit is conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our audit approach is designed to allow us to execute a good quality and efficient audit. We do this by

- gaining an understanding of the Centre and its environment by focusing on new developments and key business issues affecting the Centre, as well as management's monitoring of controls and business processes;
- identifying significant audit risks, sharing our perspectives, obtaining feedback, and ensuring our audit is tailored to these risks;
- reviewing, in accordance with our role as external auditor of the ILO, the data provided to the actuary, hired by the ILO, to determine the liability related to After-Service Health Insurance (ASHI);
- using well-reasoned professional judgment, especially in areas that are subjective or that require estimates;
- leveraging reliance where possible on the Centre's internal controls, information technology, and data systems, we intend to adopt a controls-reliant approach for the payroll cycle; and
- relying on the work of the ILO's Office of Internal Audit and Oversight (IAO) which is also the Centre's internal auditor, to the extent we consider it practicable.

Our approach will include a mixture of key controls reliance, substantive analytics, and detailed testing. Our understanding of the Centre also drives our assessment of materiality and the identification of audit risks.

Throughout the audit, we will scale our work based on the size of an account balance, its complexity, and its impact on the financial statements. As a result, we will always discuss key issues with you.

## **Risk analysis**

Our audit is risk-based. Significant risks are those risks of material misstatement or noncompliance with significant authority instruments that, in our judgment, require special audit consideration. We have identified the following significant audit risks and other risks, including business risks with a potential audit impact, as part of our planning process.

These risks were identified based on discussions with management, our knowledge of the Centre, and current developments in your environment, including your internal controls.

They are the most important risks from our perspective. We request your input on the following significant risks, and whether there are any other areas of concern that you have identified.

## Funding

#### Background/Risk

As in prior years, the Centre continues to face funding challenges due to the ongoing economic climate in many countries. This could result in non-compliance of the *Financial Regulations* of the Centre if the Centre was not able to carry out certain activities, to respect its budget, to not use funds for the intended purpose, or not fully meet its objectives.

#### Procedures and controls in place to respond to the risk

The Centre's Finance Committee and Management Committee meet multiple times a year and evaluate the financial status of the Centre, comparing funding, expenses, and planned activities to the budget.

#### Our planned response

We will review whether sufficient controls are in place to mitigate the risk of non-compliance, and we will ensure that the transactions we test are in compliance with the authorities of the Centre.

In addition, we will ensure that funds are being used for their designated purpose.

#### Management estimates

#### Background/Risk

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive due to their significance to the financial statements and the possibility that future events may differ significantly from management's expectations.

We have identified the following potentially significant estimates that represent a higher risk:

- Provision for doubtful accounts
- Provisions for contingent liabilities
- Useful lives of property and equipment

This could result in errors in the financial results (over or understatement of accounts receivable, liabilities and/or expenses) if due diligence is not exercised in the determination of the estimates.

#### Procedures and controls in place to respond to the risk

For the provision for doubtful accounts, the Treasurer requests quarterly updates from program managers on actions taken to collect receivables. The Treasurer then reviews this information, and may issue formal collection letters or set up a provision as required. The Finance Committee also receives quarterly reports to monitor the status of overdue accounts receivable.

For contingent liabilities, management monitors potential issues through committee meetings and through discussion with legal counsel.

For useful lives of property and equipment, the condition of each asset is verified every two years by a representative of the Administration group and the custodian of the asset.

#### Our planned response

We will examine the reasonableness of the estimates through discussions with senior management and review of the key assumptions used to establish the estimates, as well as the accuracy and completeness of data used to make these assumptions. We will also review disclosures made in the financial statements.

#### Transactions not being accounted for in the appropriate period

#### Background/Risk

Over the past two years, we have noted issues with transactions not being accounted for in the appropriate financial period relating to accruals for both revenue and expenses due to a misunderstanding of year-end instructions provided by Financial Services.

This could result in inaccurate revenue and expense figures, causing misleading results when compared to the budget.

#### Procedures and controls in place to respond to the risk

The Financial Services is to conduct an information session with employees on the processes for closing the financial period.

#### Our planned response

We will gain knowledge of the information provided during the training session provided by Financial Services.

We will examine the accrual calculations as part of our testing, as well as the accuracy and completeness of data used to calculate the accruals.

## Materiality

Materiality represents our judgment on the degree of significance of a misstatement(s) that could influence the decision of a knowledgeable user relying on the financial statements. In determining materiality, both quantitative and qualitative factors are considered.

We have set our preliminary materiality for the audit as follows:

	Basis	31 December 2015
Overall materiality	2% of the average total expenses of the Centre from the last two bienniums	€ 769,000
Unadjusted and adjusted items in excess of this amount will be reported to management	5% of overall materiality	€ 38,000

We considered the following factors in establishing materiality: the needs of the Centre and other contributors, representatives of governments, employers and workers, the International Labour Organization and other multilateral agencies and the recipients of training services. This is consistent with the materiality used for the 2014 financial statement audit.

We would like to make you aware, however, that the quantitative measure of materiality is not the only factor we consider in evaluating misstatements. Relatively small misstatements may have material effect on the financial statements because of qualitative considerations. For example, misstatements that have the effect of altering performance trends or turning operating losses into operating income could be considered material, even though they might be less than our quantitative measure of materiality.

We will update you at year-end on our final determination of materiality.

## Fraud and error

When planning and conducting the audit, we consider the possibility that fraud or error, if sufficiently material, may affect our opinion on the financial statements. Accordingly, we maintain an attitude of professional skepticism throughout the audit, recognizing the possibility that a material misstatement due to fraud could exist.

In order to fulfill our responsibilities related to fraud, we plan to perform the following procedures:

• Inquire of management, internal auditor, and others related to knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud, the fraud risk assessment process, and how fraud risks are addressed.

- Inquire about matters raised before the Accountability Committee regarding fraud and alleged fraud, dishonesty, negligence and disregard of established Centre procedures or directives.
- Consider whether fraud risk factors exist as part of our client acceptance and continuance procedures.
- Analytical procedures, primarily over revenue, and considering unusual or unexpected relationships identified in performing analytical procedures in planning the audit.
- Incorporate an element of unpredictability in the selection of the nature, timing, and extent of audit procedures to be performed annually.
- Perform additional required procedures to address the risk of management's override of controls, including:
  - examining journal entries and other adjustments for evidence of possible material misstatement due to fraud;
  - reviewing accounting estimates for biases that could result in material misstatement due to fraud (including a retrospective review of significant prior years' estimates); and
  - evaluating the business rationale of significant unusual transactions.

If you have knowledge of any actual, suspected, or alleged fraud affecting the Centre, please disclose this matter to us as soon as practicable.

If, at any point throughout the audit, we become aware of suspected fraud involving management, employees who have significant roles in internal controls, and other cases where fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial statements, we will advise you on a timely basis. We will discuss with you the nature, timing, and extent of the audit procedures necessary to complete the audit. We will also communicate any other matters related to fraud that are, in our judgment, relevant to your responsibilities.

## **Reliance on internal control**

We have assessed the overall control environment and the control activities relevant to the audit of the Centre and will therefore be adopting a controls-reliant approach for the payroll cycle.

Our professional standards require us to communicate in writing any significant deficiencies in internal control to management and those charged with governance on a timely basis. This includes deficiencies that may have been previously communicated, yet remain unresolved.

## Reliance on internal audit

The *Financial Regulations* of the Centre require the Director of the Centre to maintain an internal audit that provides an effective current examination and/or review of financial transactions. We identify areas where internal audit work could provide us with audit assurance and determine the impact on the external audit procedures.

The Office of Internal Audit and Oversight (IAO) of the ILO provides internal audit services to the Centre. We obtained the IAO's 2015 Audit Planning Memorandum for the Centre, which includes an updated risk register. We have not identified any activities where we could practicably rely on an internal audits conducted for our audit work, but we will review this work to augment our knowledge of systems and processes of the Centre for the current year's audit.

## Other services provided

## **Expense verification**

From time to time, as the external auditor of the Centre, we are required to perform expense verification in accordance with contract requirements. For each of these audits, we issue separate terms of engagement which are not covered by the attached audit terms found in Appendix C.

## Other areas under audit

In consultation with management of the Centre, we have agreed to review processes and procedures relating to the management, usage, and monitoring of sick leave and family leave taken by employees of the Centre. The objective our audit work will be to review the changes implemented since 2011 to achieve improvements in leave management, reducing staff costs and minimizing impact on operations of the Centre. The results of this review will be included in our report to the Board.

## Audit management

## Audit team

The audit of the Centre's 2015 year-end will be completed by a team composed of senior personnel from our Office who are involved in the planning, coordination, and direction of the audit and staff members who perform detailed procedures during our on-site visits. The Auditor General of Canada is consulted by the audit team on sensitive, complex, and/or difficult issues.

The Audit Principal is responsible for audit quality and ensures that audits are carried out in compliance with Office policies, professional standards, and the Office's system of quality control.

Senior staff involved in this year's audit includes the following:

Michael Ferguson	Auditor General
Marian McMahon	Assistant Auditor General
Carla Nash	Audit Principal
Chantal Berger	Director

## Audit timetable

After consulting with management, we have established the following timetable that highlights the timing of the audit's major activities.

Board of the Centre Meeting—presentation of audit plan	29-30 October 2015
Interim Audit Visits	4 to 13 November 2015
Year-end Audit	10 to 26 February 2016
Clearance meeting with management	25 February 2016
Finalization of audit, including audit adjustments	16 March 2016
Signed audit opinion	Planned for the third week of March 2016
Board of the Centre Meeting—presentation of audit results	Planned for May 2016

## Audit hours and costs

Fees, including travel costs, for the 2015 financial statements audit have been set at \$145,000 USD. These fees are calculated on the basis of the time we anticipate spending on the audit of the Centre, and on the levels of skill and responsibilities involved. The various components of the fees were discussed with management of the Centre in determining the most economical alternatives and an agreement was reached that estimates for the various travel components are the lower of the best rates available to the Centre or the Office of the Auditor General of Canada.

# Appendix A—Understanding our audit

## Overview

In conducting an audit of financial statements, the overall objectives of the auditor are to

- obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, thereby enabling the auditor to express an opinion on whether the financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with an applicable financial reporting framework; and
- report on the financial statements, and communicate as required by professional auditing standards, in accordance with the auditor's findings.

Background and additional information concerning our audit is set out below.

## **Risk analysis**

Our audit is risk based, meaning:

- We identify and assess risks of material misstatement or non-compliance with significant authority instruments based on our understanding of the Centre and its environment, including the Centre's internal control.
- We design and implement audit procedures based on our risk assessment.

We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement at the

- (a) financial statement level; and
- (b) assertion level for classes of transactions, account balances, and disclosures.

Risk assessment procedures include the following:

- inquiries of management, of appropriate individuals within the internal audit function, and of others within the Centre who in our judgment may have information that is likely to assist in identifying risks of material misstatement due to fraud or error.
- analytical procedures.
- observation and inspection.
- whether information obtained from our acceptance or continuance process is relevant to identifying risks of material misstatement.
- information obtained from other engagements we have performed regarding the Centre.

Having completed a risk assessment, our objective is to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of material misstatement, through designing and implementing appropriate responses to those risks.

#### Management representations

As part of our audit process, we will require a letter of representation from management confirming representations made to us verbally or in writing during the audit, as well as representations that are implicit in the Centre's financial statements and records. Management's representations are integral to the audit evidence gathered by us and they are required in writing so that we have appropriate documentation to support the content of our report.

Written representations inform us that management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance believe that they have fulfilled their responsibility for the preparation of the financial statements and for the completeness of the information provided to us. These representations support other audit evidence relevant to the financial statements or specific assertions in the financial statements.

Management's responsibility to provide written representations to the auditor is included in the engagement letter between the auditor and the Centre.

# Our responsibilities relating to other information in the annual report and similar documents

The Centre may wish to publish the financial statements, including our audit reports, in other documents, such as in an annual report. International Standards on Auditing require us to review publications before they are published to ensure that the financial statements and our auditor's report have been reproduced accurately. We also read other information within the publications for the purpose of identifying material inconsistencies, if any, with the audited financial statements or material misstatements of fact. We will also expand the review described above to include the Internet version of the publications.

# Appendix B—Responsibilities for financial reporting

## Management

Management is responsible for the day-to-day activities of the Centre. This includes, among other things, the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework, which includes responsibilities related to internal control, such as designing and maintaining accounting records, selecting and applying accounting policies, safeguarding assets, complying with legislative and other authorities, and preventing and detecting error and fraud. It is the responsibility of management to establish a control environment and maintain policies and procedures to assist in achieving the objective of ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Centre's business. In determining which controls to implement to prevent and detect fraud, management should consider the risks that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

Management is also responsible for the preparation, integrity, and objectivity of publicly reported information such as annual financial statements. In preparing financial statements, management is responsible for exercising sound judgment in selecting and applying accounting policies in accordance with the applicable accounting framework.

## **Board of the Centre**

The Board of the Centre is responsible for oversight of the management of the Centre, activities, and other affairs of the Centre. Among other things, this means that the Board has oversight responsibility for the financial reporting process.

The Board, through oversight of management, is responsible for ensuring that the Centre designs, implements, and maintains appropriate internal control with regard to reliability of financial reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and compliance with applicable legislation and other authorities.

# Appendix C—Engagement letter

Office of the Auditor General of Canada Bureau du vérificateur général du Canada
15 July 2015
Patricia O'Donovan Director International Training Centre of the International Labour Organization Viale Maestri del Lavoro, 10 10127 Turin, Italy
Dear Ms. O'Donovan:
The purpose of this letter is to confirm our common understanding of the terms of the audit engagement.
In accordance with Article 24 of the <i>Financial Regulations</i> of the International Training Centre of the International Labour Organization (the Centre), the Auditor General of Canada is the External Auditor of the Centre as it is the External Auditor of the International Labour Organization.
In accordance with the <i>Financial Regulations</i> , our audit of the financial statements of the Centre is designed to enable the Auditor General of Canada to issue a report indicating whether, in his opinion:
(a) the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Centre as at 31 December 2015, and its financial performance, its cash flows and the comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards;
(b) the accounting principles in International Public Sector Accounting Standards have been applied on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year; and
(c) the transactions of the Centre that have come to his notice during his audit of the financial statements have, in all significant respects, been in accordance with the <i>Financial Regulations</i> and legislative authority of the Centre.
We also have an obligation to call attention to any other matter falling within the scope of the audit for the report that, in our opinion, should be brought to the attention of the Board of the Centre.
The form and content of this auditor's report will be in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. There may be circumstances where our auditor's report will differ from the standard with respect to form and content. In such cases, we will discuss with management in advance of finalizing our auditor's report and seek to resolve any difference of view that may exist. This will be communicated, if appropriate or necessary, to those charged with governance in the Report to the Board – Annual Audit Results at the end of the audit. This will be communicated, if appropriate or necessary, to those charged with governance in the Report to the Board – Annual Audit Results at the end of the audit.
240 rue Sparks Street Ottawa, Optario KIA 066

#### - 2 -

#### Our responsibilities

Annual financial statements audit. We are responsible to conduct our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical and independence requirements, and that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. An audit also involves evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

The scope of our audit will include obtaining, to the extent necessary to effectively carry out our work, an understanding of the Centre and its business environment, the business risks it faces, how the Centre manages those risks, and its overall control environment.

**Risk assessment.** In making our risk assessments, we will obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. The scope of our review of internal controls will not be sufficient to express an opinion on the effectiveness or efficiency of the Centre's internal controls. However, we will inform the management as well as those charged with governance in writing of any significant deficiencies in internal control relevant to the audit of the financial statements that we have identified during the audit.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements in the financial statements may not be detected (particularly intentional misstatements concealed through collusion), even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with International Standards on Auditing.

**Fraud.** In planning and conducting the audit, we consider the possibility that fraud or error, if sufficiently material, may affect our opinion on the financial statements. Accordingly, we maintain an attitude of professional skepticism throughout the audit, recognizing the possibility that a material misstatement due to fraud could exist. Because of the nature of fraud, which could include attempts at concealment through collusion and forgery, an audit designed and executed in accordance with International Standards on Auditing may not detect a material fraud. Furthermore, while effective internal control reduces the likelihood that misstatements will occur and remain undetected, it does not eliminate that possibility. For these reasons, we cannot guarantee that fraud, error, and illegal acts, if present, will be detected.

**Communication of matters.** We will inform management and, if appropriate or necessary, those charged with governance of the following matters that we may have identified during the course of our audit:

- misstatements, resulting from error (other than trivial errors), and the request to correct those misstatements;
- · fraud or any information obtained that indicates that a fraud may exist;
- any evidence obtained that indicates non-compliance, or suspected non-compliance, with the *Financial Regulations* and legislative authority;

- 3 significant deficiencies in the design or implementation of internal control to prevent and detect fraud or error; and related party transactions identified by us that are significant and outside the normal course of operations. However, audits do not usually identify all matters that may be of interest to management in carrying out its responsibilities. The type and significance of the matter to be communicated will determine the level of management to whom the communication is directed. Confidentiality. All of our employees have a duty of confidentiality within the limits of the law. Accordingly, except for information that is in or enters the public domain, we will not provide any third party with confidential information concerning the affairs of the Centre without your prior consent-unless we are required to do so by the law. Review of designated public documents. As the Centre's external auditor, we are required to review designated public documents containing the audited financial statements and our auditor's report, prior to their publication, to ensure that the financial statements and our auditor's report have been reproduced accurately. We are also required to read the other information (financial or non-financial) included in these designated public documents to identify material inconsistencies, if any, with the audited financial statements. We do not have specific responsibility for determining whether or not other information is properly stated. However, if we become aware of an apparent material misstatement of fact, we will discuss the matter with management. We will also expand our review to include the Internet version of such documents. Management responsibilities Our audit will be conducted on the premise that management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance acknowledge and understand that they have the following responsibilities. Responsibility for financial statements and internal control. Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and information referred to above. Management is also responsible for establishing and maintaining an effective system of internal control over financial reporting to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In this regard, management is responsible for establishing policies and procedures that ensure financial information is prepared in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards. Correction of errors. Management is responsible for adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for confirming to us that the total of all uncorrected misstatements identified by us during our audit are immaterial, both individually and in total, to the financial statements taken as a whole. In addition, we expect management will correct all known non-trivial errors.

Prevention and detection of fraud. Management is also responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for informing us

(a) of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud;

(b) about all known or suspected fraud affecting the Centre involving (i) management,

20 ob

- 4 -(ii) employees who have significant roles in internal control over financial reporting and (iii) others where the fraud could have a non-trivial effect on the financial statements; and (c) of knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Centre received in communications from employees, former employees, or others. Related parties. Management is responsible for disclosing to us the identity of each related party and all the related party relationships and transactions of which management is aware and, for providing to us any updates that occur during the course of this engagement. Subsequent events. Management is responsible for informing us of subsequent events that may affect the financial statements of which they may become aware up to the date the financial statements are issued. Laws, regulations, and other authorities. Management is responsible for identifying and ensuring that they comply with the laws, regulations and other authorities applicable to the Centre and its activities. Management will make available to us information relating to any illegal or possibly illegal acts, and all facts related thereto, and will provide information to us relating to any known or probable instances of non-compliance with legislative or regulatory requirements, including financial reporting requirements. Providing information on a timely basis. Management is responsible for making available to us, on a timely basis, all of the Centre's original accounting records and related information relevant to the preparation of the financial statements, additional information that we may request from you for the purposes of our audit, and unrestricted access to the Centre's personnel who we may determine necessary to obtain evidence necessary to support our audit of the financial statements. Management representation letter. Management will provide us with written representations that encompass representations made to us during the audit covering the financial statements. Management's representations are integral to our audit evidence. Other engagement matters. Fees, including travel costs, for the 2015 financial statements audit have been set at \$145,000 USD. These fees are calculated on the basis of the time we anticipate spending on the audit of the Centre, and on the levels of skill and responsibilities involved. The various components of the fees were discussed with management of the Centre in determining the most economical alternatives and an agreement was reached that estimates for the various travel components are the lower of the best rates available to Centre or the Office of the Auditor General of Canada. Fees are established on the basis that the Centre will meet its obligations outlined in this engagement letter. It is our intention to present invoices for work done at appropriate intervals during the course of the audit. These invoices will be payable upon presentation. All working papers and files, other materials, reports, and work that we create, develop, or perform during the course of the engagement will remain our property. These terms of engagement will be effective from year to year until amended or terminated in writing.

- 5 -
If the terms of the audit engagement are acceptable to you, please sign the duplicate of this letter in the space provided and return it to us. Your signature also indicates that you agree to acknowledge and understand your management responsibilities, as outlined in this letter. Yours sincerely,
MMCMbhon, CPA, CA, CFA Assistant Auditor General
By signing below, I acknowledge and agree to my obligation to ensure that the responsibilities of the International Training Centre of the ILO and its management as set forth herein are properly discharged:
By:
Patricia O'Donavan Director
By:
Christine Boulanger Treasurer and Chief, Financial Services

# Appendix D—Standard Auditor's Report

## INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of the International Training Centre of the International Labour Organization

## **Report on the Financial Statements**

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the International Training Centre of the International Labour Organization, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flow and statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

## Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the International Public Sector Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

## Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

## Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the International Training Centre of the International Labour Organization as

at 31 December 2015, and its financial performance, its cash flows and the comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended in accordance with the International Public Sector Accounting Standards.

#### **Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements**

As required by the *Financial Regulations* of the International Training Centre of the International Labour Organization, I report that, in my opinion, the accounting policies in the International Public Sector Accounting Standards have been applied on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year.

Further, in my opinion, the transactions of the International Training Centre of the International Labour Organization that have come to my notice as part of my audit of the financial statements have, in all significant respects, been in accordance with the *Financial Regulations* and legislative authority of the International Training Centre of the International Labour Organization.

In accordance with Article 27 of the *Financial Regulations* of the International Training Centre of the International Labour Organization, a detailed report is issued on my audit of the International Training Centre of the International Labour Organization's financial statements to the Board.

Michael Ferguson, CPA, CA FCA (New Brunswick) Auditor General of Canada

Date Ottawa, Canada

# Appendix E—Independence

The Office of the Auditor General of Canada's *Code of Values, Ethics and Professional Conduct*, the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario (Canada), and the International Federation of Accountants' *Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants* require us to maintain independence from the Centre. The latter requires that we communicate with you regarding all relationships between the Centre and us that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence.

In determining which relationships to report, we consider relevant rules and related interpretations prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario (Canada) and applicable legislation, covering such matters as:

- holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in the Centre;
- holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to exert significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of the Centre;
- personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, senior officials, or retired senior officials, either directly or indirectly, with the Centre; and
- over familiarity with the Centre due to a long-standing relationship.

To provide further assurance, our quality management system requires us to ensure safeguards are applied to eliminate identified threats to independence, or reduce them to an acceptable level to ensure that we complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. Our audit staff is required to annually declare any personal relationships that could be perceived as placing them in a conflict of interest position. We also have policies designed to ensure that auditors do not remain on the same audit for excessive periods of time.

At this time, we are not aware of any relationships between the Centre and our audit staff that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence.

# Appendix F—Developments in accounting and auditing standards

## 1. Auditor Reporting

The International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (IAASB) undertook a project that considers revision of ISA 700, *Forming an Opinion and Reporting on Financial Statements*, as well as proposed amendments to related ISAs. The premise under this project is that a good quality audit should be accompanied by an informative auditor's report that delivers value to the entity's stakeholders.

The IAASB has reached general agreement on a number of improvements to auditor reporting that it believes in principle should be promulgated internationally.

- Additional information in the auditor's report to highlight matters that are, in the auditor's judgment, likely to be most important to users' understanding of the audited financial statements or the audit, referred to as "Auditor Commentary."
- Auditor conclusion on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in preparing the financial statements and an explicit statement as to whether material uncertainties in relation to going concern have been identified.
- Auditor statement as to whether any material inconsistencies between the audited financial statements and other information have been identified based on the auditor's reading of other information, and specific identification of the information read by the auditor.
- Prominent placement of the auditor's opinion and other entity-specific information in the auditor's report.
- Further suggestions to provide transparency about the audit performed, and enhance the description of the respective responsibilities of the auditor, management, and those charged with governance in an ISA audit.

Due process for setting these new reporting standards continues.

## 2. Developments in International Public Sector Pronouncements

We have identified the following future developments as being potentially significant for the Centre:

Reporting Service Performance Information
Implication to the Organization
As the public sector provides a wide range of services, this project proposes that an entity present information on its performance in addition to its finances. Guidance would be provided to ensure that this information meets users' needs and would recommend minimum characteristics for reporting.
For example, an entity would report on its service performance objectives and how these were achieved, its performance indicators (both quantitative and qualitative measures), the resources used, and its impact on society, if any.

As part of its Annual and Interim Implementation Reports, the Centre identifies performance indicators and provides information on its progress. The Centre would need to ensure that the information disclosed adheres to the guidance provided.

#### **Financial audit implication**

As this information is a supplement to the financial statements, the audit team would need to review this information to ensure compliance to the new standard.

#### **Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis**

#### Implication to the Organization

This proposed guidance would apply to all public sector entities that prepare and present financial statements under the accrual basis of accounting and relates to certain minimum content requirements in the financial statement discussion and analysis, currently called the Financial Report on the 2015 accounts by the Centre.

This could include an overview of the entity's environment and risks in which it operates, its objectives and strategies to enable users to understand the entity's priorities and how this affects the financial statements; an analysis of the entity's financial statements of the current period including a description of significant events, trends and conditions, and factors that affected the financial statements to enhance the users' understanding of the financial statements.

#### Financial audit implication

The Centre would need to expand its current Financial Report to include these elements, which the audit team would review to ensure compliance. The audit team would perform work on this area to ensure compliance to any new standards.

#### Reporting on the Long-Term Sustainability of Public Finances

#### Implication to the Organization

With the continuing volatility in the world's financial markets and the sovereign debt crisis that has emphasized the importance of the fiscal condition of governments and other public sector entities to the global economy, the financial statements alone cannot provide all the information that users require to assess a government or an entity's long-term fiscal sustainability.

Additional information provided with the financial statements is recommended, such as projections of inflows and outflows of resources over the longer term, together with narrative explanations of the main risks facing governments and other public sector entities. This information would help users in evaluating the extent to which the current policies are sustainable and would complement the financial statements to achieve the objectives of financial reporting, which are accountability and decision-making.

#### Financial audit implication

The Centre would need to add this information to its current Financial Report, which would be reviewed by the audit team to ensure compliance.